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Located about 1 mile north of Critz on Va. 798 (one-half mile
north of its intersection with Va. €26), the recently restored
Reynolds Homestead looks much as 1t did when Richard Joshua Reynolds
lived here from 18350 to 1074. 1is pgrandfather, Abraham Revnolds,
bulilt the first house on the property in 131ll--a log cabin which stood
near the manslion but 1s no longer extant. After the rroperty passed
to R. J. Reynolds' father, Hardin ¥. Reynolds, the present house and
1ts adjacent outbuildings were constructed between 1343 and 125%.

The dwellinpg house was erected in two parts. In 1043 Hardin V.
Feynolds bullt what iIs now the two-story rear ell, and scmetime later
he added the present two-story main block. At the time the house was
completed, it faced the Rristol-lNorfolk Highway, at one time an import-
ant artery of commerce that today is only a eraveled dirt road which
eventually turns into a jeer trail.

In addition to the hcuse, the homestead had numerous outbuildings
including a store and tobacco factory. The store was torn down in
1969, and the tobacco factory, where R. J. Reynolds learned the art of
manufacturing chewing tobacco, disappeared many yvears ago. Several
historic outbuildines remain, however. They are a detached kiltchen,
icehouse, milkhouse, and larese corncrib--all of which were completed
before 1855.

After llardin V. Reynolds' death in 1882, the house and much of the
surrounding land remained in the family. Over the years, the house
pradually deteriorated until by the 19€60's it apveared to be almost
beyond saving. In 1965 Mrs. Nancy Susan Reynolds, F. J. Reynolds' only
surviving child, purchased the homestead and 717 origsinal acres from
her cousin Hardin Reynolds, and after much investirsation and planning,
she had the house and outbulldings carefully restored. Subsequently,
late in 1967, MYMrs. Reynolds rave 710.01 acres of the property to the
Virpginia Polvtechnic Institute Educational Foundation to establish the
Reynolds Homestead Research Center for the studv of forestry, wildlife
managenment, entomology, and meteorslogy. The remaining (.92 acres,
including the house and outbuildings, the family burial ground, and a
recently comnleted Learning Center, were retained by IFMrs. Reynolds.

The Mansion. The northwest-facing house is a two-story, L-shaped
structure of red brick. It measures three bays wicde and rests on

brick foundations. Two corbeled outside chimneys are located on the

east end, while a single corbeled chimney is featured on the west side..
The low-hipped, metal-covered roof with plain cornice dates back only gﬁ%
to the 1930's, when the original was destroved in a windstorm, but is
built along the same lines as the original. The front entrance features
a one-story, flat-roofed portico suvported by two rlastered brick Doric
columns, two similar Ionic columns, and two wood nillasters. Front access

to the interior is by a wocd, double door that is flanked by sidelights
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Richard Joshua Reynolds, according to Joseph C. Robert, a leading
expert on the history of the American tobacco industry, introduced
"the first modern cigarette. . . . No less an authority than the
Supreme Court of the United States, U.S. 791, has affirmed that the
R. J. Reynolds Tobacci Company with its Camels 'revolutionized the
cigarette industry.'"+ Zefore Reynolds first marketed Camels in 1913,
most manufactured clparettes were predominantly Turkish tobacco in
thelr content, were sold more by premiums and coupons than advertising,
and were not wldely popular with the general public, who preferred the
"roll your own" variety. Camels' success, says economist William H.
Nicholls, "was phenomenal and immediate," giving Reynolds 34.7 percent
of the clrapgette market by 1927--a fipgure destined to reach 50 percent
by the 1920's--and causing others to follow in his stead.?

This remarkable success was achieved by a man whose firm only
2 years previously had been in the clutches of the American Tobacco
Company Trust. In fact, says historian Nannie May Tilley, "his was
the only business of the many assimilated by the American Tobacco
Company te¢ emerge from the combination in the same location, with its
own directors, and with 1ts own brands."3 Before entering the ciga-
rette field, Reynolds had been the Nation's leading manufacturer of
flat plup chewinpg tobacco. His most important innovations in this
line of manufacture, according to a recently published company history,
were "the use of saccharin as an inexpensive and easy way to sweeten
the bright leaf" and the aging of "tobacco in the leaf before manu-—
facture rather than in the plug, as had been the custom."%

Today, Reynolds Homestead, which has recently undergone a careful
restoration, looks much as it did when Richard Joshua Reynolds resided
here from 1850 to 1874. The house is a two-story, L-shaped, red brick

+Joseph Clarke Robert, The Story of Tobacco in America (Chapel
Hil1l, 1967), 230. : (i/

William H. Micholls, Price Policies in the Cigarette Industry: A
Study of "Concerted Action" and Its Social Control, 1911-1950 (Nashville,
1951), 36.

Nannie May Tilley, Reynolds Homestead, 181L-1070 (Richmond,l@?O% 15¢

“R. J. Revnold
e J. ney s Industries, Inc., Our 100th Arni r_
(Winston-Salem, 1975), 4 ’ ’ nnlversary, 1875-1975
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and topped by a transom. There are two rear, single-door entrances.
One opens off the rear of the main block and one off the west side

of the older ell, and both are sheltered by a shed-roofed porch that
extends the full length of those two facades. Both front and rear
entrances are accessible by brick walkways and granite steps that are
of more recent vintage than the house.

Most windows are of the six-over-six sash variety (the windows
on the first floor of the front facade are nine-over-six) and have
flat brick arches and wood sills and surrounds. Above the portico in
the center of the front facade, there is a single door almost identical
to the main entrance.

Inside, the main block follows a central hall plan. An entry hall
with a central, open-string stairway with square balusters is flanked
by one room on both floors. To the left on the first floor 1is the
parlor, and on the right is the dining room. Both have many of their
oripginal furnishings and feature mantels, door and windew trim, and
baseboards that have been painted to resemble marble. Two similar
rooms on the second floor have been somewhat modified tc serve as
modern guest rooms, but they still retain many original features. The
rear ell, the oldest portion of the house, is rear and to the left of
the entrance hall and consists of one room on each floor. The Reynolds
bedroom is located on the first floor of this section and contains the
bed where R. J. Reynolds was born. It features paneled wainscotting and
a rather eleborate wooden mantel resting on Doric columns. The open-
string stairway leading to the upper story also has paneled walnscotting
and is in the Chinese Chippendale style. The second floor room in this
section has undergone alteration and now serves as a tobacco museum.

With the exception of the Reynolds bedroom, the house has its
original yellow pine flooring. Most doors, door hardware, and woodwork
are original with the exception of window sashes, most of which had to
be replaced. Paintwork is the older section 1s copied from the
original colors while the paintwork in the rest of the house is
the orlginal. Walls throughout are brick covered with plaster. The
house contains many of the Victorian and Empire Style furnishings
that were here when R. J. Reynolds was.

TN,
Outbuildings and Cemetery. Approximately 110 feet southwest of the{EEfCﬁ
house is the large log corncrib, and about 45 feet southeast of the e

house is the one-story, brick kitchen with its gabled, metal roof.
Approximately 30 feet west of 1t 1s the shingle-roofed log icehouse
which 1s flanked on the north by a small, brick milkhouse. All of these

GPO 892 455
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buildings were included in the recent restoration. The Reynolds family
cemetery, surrounded by a wrought iron fence, is located about 120

feet northeast of the house. Although Hardin W. Reynolds 1s buried
here, his famous son, R. J., is not.

Other Structures. Within the boundary of the designated property are
two structures that do not contribute to its national significance.
Rear of the corncrib is a modern restroom facility, and about 45 feet
west of it is the newly completed Learning Center. It houses a
cultural enrichment program for the surrounding area.

Boundary Justification. The €.99-acre area described below includes

the Reynolds house and its adjacent historic outbuilldings and is
surrounded by 710.01 acres that Mrs. Nancy Susan Reynolds deeded to
Virginia Polytechnic Institute in 1969. By written agreement, use of

the 710.01 acres is restricted to research and study programs in foresty,
wildlife management, entomology, and meterology, and therefore since

that acreage seems effectively protected from future commercial or
industrial use, 1t 1s not included in the boundary of the nomlnated
property.

Boundary Description. As indicated in red on the accompanying maps
[(1) U.S.G.S8. 7.5" Series; Va., Patrick Springs Quad., 1967; and

(2) AASLH Sketch Map, 1976], a line beginning at a point equidistant
from, and o6n a straight line between, a whité pine tree and a locust
tree that flank Va. 798 approximately 2/0 feet directly south of the
Reynolds house and extending SE0°00'W approximately U5 feet to a
marked point; thence, N38°00'E 285.45 feet to a marked point; thence,
N58°38'E 122.05 feet to a marked point; thence, NE5°30'E 606.80 feet
to a marked point; thence, S12°13'E 428.75 feet to a marked point;
thence, S60°00'W approximately 2€7 feet to the point of beginning.
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structure measuring three bays wide and featuring a low-hipped,
metal-covered roof and a portico flanked by Doric and Ionic columns.
Nearby are a detached one-story, brick kitchen, brick milkhouse, wooden
icehouse, and large wooden corncrib. The only other known Reynolds
residence is his estate, "Reynolda," in Winston-Salem, N.C. He resided
there only 8 months, however, before his death in 1918. At one time,
Reynolds owned a mansion on Fifth Street in Winston-Salem, but this

was demolished several years ago. The homestead is a more fitting
memorial to Reynolds because it was here he learned the tobacco
manufacturing tusiness from his father, who, according to Til%ey, also
endowed him with "a tremendous drive to succeed in business."

History

Richard Joshua Reynolds, the sixth of 14 children born to Hardin
W. and Nancy Cox Reynolds, was born July 20, 1850, at Rock Spring
Plantation near what is now Critz in southwestern Virginia. His
father, who combined the occupations of farmer, tobacco manufacturer,
merchant, and banker, was a man of some wealth, who on the eve of the
Civil War owned 59 slaves and 11,000 acres of land. Despite this
affluence, Reynolds and his brothers were put to work at an early ape
in the family tobacco factory where they were quickly taught the art
of manufacturing chewing tobacco. Reynolds' future course, says
Tilley, was strongly influenced by his father, who endowed him with
"a tremendous drive to succeed in business."6

After attending local schools, Reynolds entered Emory and Henry
College in 1868. Although he showed an aptitude for mathematics, he
remained here only 2 yvears because of an eye defect which made it
impossible for him to see more than one letter at a time. After
attending Bryant and Stratton Business College in Baltimore, ld., he
returned home in 1873 and became his father's partner in the family
tobacco factory, which was situated directly behind the plantation
house. In addition to supervising chewing tobacco manufacture, young
Reynolds was also responsible for marketing the finished product--a
task which sometimes required itinerant neddling trips by wagon as far
as Tennessee and Kentucky.

In the fall of 1874 Reynolds decided to end the partnership
arrangement with his father and set up his own tobacco factory. With_
¢7,500 in capital he moved to Winston, N.C. (Winston-Salem came intoiﬁg}
existence in 1913 when Winston and nearby Salem merced). He chose shid

5
Tilley, Reynolds Homestead, 1.

€
Ibid.

GPQ 892 455
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this location because of its rail connections and its proximity to the
Bright tobacco producing areas. Here in 1875 he opened his first
factory, a now-demolished two-story structure measuring 38 by 60 feet,
and began the manufacture of flat plug chewling tobacco. For the next
few years, Reynolds, who, according to scholar Robert K. Heimann, "had
a Yankee's thrift and a Yankee's sharp pencil," plowed his profits
back into the business, expanding his factory and eventually building
a new one and buying out some of his smaller competitors.7 By 1887

he was selling 750,000 pounds of plug annually under 86 different
brand names and had a personal worth of $263,000.

In 1890 he formally incorporated the R. J. Reynolds Tobacco
Company and began a concerted effort to improve both his buslness
organization and product quality. A more modern factory was constructed,
a large-scale advertising campailgn launched, and a separate department
created to handle sales. Reynolds improved the quality of hils chewing
tobacco, says a recently published company history, by '"the use of
saccharin as an inexpensive and easy way to sweeten the bright leaf"
and the aging of "tobacco in the leaf before manufacture rather than
in the plug, as had been the custom. "8 By 1898 Reynolds was the
Nation's leading manufacturer of flat plug tobacco, selling 5 million
pounds annually.

Despite his success, Reynolds, who had been one of James B. Duke's
fiercest critics, found himself forced in 1899, due to sharp competition
and a need for more capital, to become part of the American Tobacco
Company Trust. For the next 12 years, Reynolds, says Tilley, "kept
his business intact under the nominal control of the new company' and
using it to’ obtain. capital "emerged to build a business stronger than
pefore."? Also, he began to expand into other lines of tobacco
production. In 1907 the company introduced Prince Albert Smoking
Tobacco, which soon became one of the Natlon's leading brands.

In 1913 Reynolds introduced Camel ciparettes, according to Robert,
"the first modern clgarette. . . . No less an authority than the
Supreme Court of the United States, 329 U.S. 791, has affirmed that the
R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Company with its Camels 'revolutionized the

TRobert K. Heimann, Tobacco and Americans (New York, 1960), 224.

7)

y

¥

8R. J. Reynolds Industries, Inc., Our 100th Anniversary, Iy, 7

9Nannie May Tillevy, The Bright-Tobacco Industry, 1860-1929 ’
(Chapel H111, 1948), 595-90.

ﬁﬁ
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ciparette industry.'"lo Before Reynolds first marketed Camels, most
manufactured cigarettes were predominantly Turkish tobacco in their
content, were sold more by premiums and coupons than advertising, and
were not widely popular with the general public, who preferred the '"roll
your own" variety. Camels differed in that they were a blend of Bright
and Burley flavored with Turkish, which was more in keeping with
national tobacco tastes, and they were marketed not by means of gimmickry
but by expensive nationwide advertising campaigns. Camels' success,

says Nicholls, "was phenomenal and immediate," glving Reynolds 34.7
percent of the cigarette market by 1917--a filgure destined to reach 50
percent by the 1920's--and causing others to follow in his stead.ll

At the time of his death on July 29, 1918, at the age of 68,
R. J. Reynolds headed a company that employed 10,000 people in 121
buildings in Winston-Salem. Today that company is the Nation's largest
tobacco manufacturer. Known today as R. J. Reynolds Industries, it
is an international conglomerate involved in oll, packaging, shipping,
and food processing as well as tobacco.

10
Robert, Story of Tobacco in America, 230.

11
Nicholls, Price Policles in the Ciparette Industry, 36.
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Cox, Reavis, Competition in the American Tobacco Industry, 1911-1932:
A Study of the Effects of the Partition of the American Tobacco
Company by the United States Supreme Court (New York: Columbia
University Press, 1033).

Heimann, Robert K., Tobacco and Americans (New York: McGraw Hill Book
Company, Inc., 1960).

Nicholls, William K., Price Policies in the Cigarette Industry: A Study
of "Concerted Action”™ and Its Social Control, 1911-1950 (Nashville:
Vanderbilt University Press, 1051).

R. J. Reynolds Industries, Inc., Our 100th Anniversary, 1875-1975
(Winston-Salem: R, J, Reynolds Industries, Inc., 1075).

Robert, Joseph Clarke, The Story of Tobacco in America (Chapel Hill:
UniveTsity of North Carolina Press, 1967). Published originally
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Tilley, Nannie May, Reynolds Homestead, 1814-1970 (Richmond: Robert
Kline and Company, 1970).

, The Bright-Tobacco Industry, 1860-1929 (Chapel Hill:
University of North Carolina Press, 1943).
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